

2nd Edition

LinkedIn[®] Profile Optimization

for the second s

Create an integrated LinkedIn branding strategy

Optimize with keywords to get discovered

Determine and articulate your professional story

Donna Serdula

Founder of LinkedIn-Makeover.com





LinkedIn Profile Optimization

2nd Edition

by Donna Serdula



LinkedIn® Profile Optimization For Dummies®, 2nd Edition

Published by: John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774, www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2020 by John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without the prior written permission of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and may not be used without written permission. LinkedIn, the LinkedIn logo, the IN logo and InMail are registered trademarks or trademarks of LinkedIn Corporation and its affiliates in the United States and/or other countries. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. John Wiley & Sons, Inc. is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY/DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: THE PUBLISHER AND THE AUTHOR MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS WORK AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTIES OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. NO WARRANTY MAY BE CREATED OR EXTENDED BY SALES OR PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS. THE ADVICE AND STRATEGIES CONTAINED HEREIN MAY NOT BE SUITABLE FOR EVERY SITUATION. THIS WORK IS SOLD WITH THE UNDERSTANDING THAT THE PUBLISHER IS NOT ENGAGED IN RENDERING LEGAL, ACCOUNTING, OR OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. IF PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE IS REQUIRED, THE SERVICES OF A COMPETENT PROFESSIONAL PERSON SHOULD BE SOUGHT. NEITHER THE PUBLISHER NOR THE AUTHOR SHALL BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES ARISING HEREFROM. THE FACT THAT AN ORGANIZATION OR WEBSITE IS REFERRED TO IN THIS WORK AS A CITATION AND/OR A POTENTIAL SOURCE OF FURTHER INFORMATION DOES NOT MEAN THAT THE AUTHOR OR THE PUBLISHER ENDORSES THE INFORMATION THE ORGANIZATION OR WEBSITE MAY PROVIDE OR RECOMMENDATIONS IT MAY MAKE. FURTHER, READERS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT INTERNET WEBSITES LISTED IN THIS WORK MAY HAVE CHANGED OR DISAPPEARED BETWEEN WHEN THIS WORK WAS WRITTEN AND WHEN IT IS READ.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002. For technical support, please visit https://hub.wiley.com/community/support/dummies.

Wiley publishes in a variety of print and electronic formats and by print-on-demand. Some material included with standard print versions of this book may not be included in e-books or in print-on-demand. If this book refers to media such as a CD or DVD that is not included in the version you purchased, you may download this material at http://booksupport.wiley.com. For more information about Wiley products, visit www.wiley.com.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2020904246

ISBN 978-1-119-65142-0 (pbk); ISBN 978-1-119-65145-1 (ebk); ISBN 978-1-119-65146-8 (ebk)

Manufactured in the United States of America

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

Contents at a Glance

Introduction	1
Part 1: The Strategy Before the Siege CHAPTER 1: Determining Your LinkedIn Strategy CHAPTER 2: Getting Found on LinkedIn CHAPTER 3: Understanding Endorsements and Recommendations	9 17
Part 2: Getting Your LinkedIn Profile Started. CHAPTER 4: Optimizing the "Behind the Scenes" Sections. CHAPTER 5: Establishing Your Calling Card. CHAPTER 6: Impressing with the Right Profile Picture. CHAPTER 7: Developing a Compelling Headline. CHAPTER 8: Reinforcing Your Brand with a Background Photo. CHAPTER 9: Showing You Are Open for Business or Job Opportunities.	63 103 123 137
Part 3: Detailing Your Career Trajectory and Creating the Ultimate First Impression CHAPTER 10: Getting Your Experiences Ready CHAPTER 11: Creating a Powerful Experience CHAPTER 12: Writing a Compelling About Section	161 169
Part 4: Rounding Out Your Profile and the Final Reveal CHAPTER 13: There's More to You than Your Jobs CHAPTER 14: Following Groups, Companies, and Influencers CHAPTER 15: Publishing on LinkedIn. CHAPTER 16: Unveiling and Marketing Your Powerful Profile	223 253 273
Part 5: The Part of Tens CHAPTER 17: Ten Profile Do's and Don'ts CHAPTER 18: Ten Tips for a Perfect Profile Picture CHAPTER 19: Ten Tips to Expand Your Network CHAPTER 20: Ten Tips to Leverage LinkedIn CHAPTER 21: Ten LinkedIn Profile Resources CHAPTER 22: Ten Ways to Get Noticed by Recruiters on LinkedIn.	327 333 349 357 363
Index	369

Table of Contents

INTRO	DUCTION	1
	About This Book	
	Foolish Assumptions	2
	How This Book Is Organized	3
	Part 1: The Strategy Before the Siege	3
	Part 2: Getting Your LinkedIn Profile Started	3
	Part 3: Detailing Your Career Trajectory and Creating	
	the Ultimate First Impression	4
	Part 4: Rounding Out Your Profile and Adding Finishing Touches	4
	Part 5: The Part of Tens	
	Icons Used in This Book	
	Beyond the Book	
PART 1	: THE STRATEGY BEFORE THE SIEGE	7
CHAPTER 1:	Determining Your LinkedIn Strategy	9
	Determining Your LinkedIn Goal1	
	Job search1	
	Reputation management and branding1	1
	Sales and prospecting1	
	Figuring Out Your Target Audience	
	Creating a Compelling Tone1	
	Using the Different Versions of LinkedIn	5
CHAPTER 2:	Getting Found on LinkedIn	7
	Using LinkedIn as a Search Engine	7
	Using the search bar1	8
	Using search filters1	
	Ensuring a Compelling and Attractive Search Result	
	Understanding the Importance of Keywords2	
	Using Online Keyword Tools	
	Using WordArt.com	
	Using LinkedIn's job postings	
	Using Good Ole Google	
	Ranking Higher with Profile SEO	
	Building Off Profile SEO	4

CHAPTER 3:	Understanding Endorsements and	
	Recommendations	
	Showcasing Your Skills	.38
	Adding skills	
	Grouping skills by category	
	Pinning your top skills	
	Rearranging skills	
	Showing Recruiters What You Know	
	Obtaining Endorsements	
	Hiding an endorsement	
	Endorsing a connection	
	Removing an endorsement	
	Soliciting endorsements	
	The Importance of Recommendations.	
	Identifying people to recommend you	
	Asking for a recommendation	
	Ditching the default request text	
	Accepting a recommendation	
	Reordering recommendations	.56
	Removing recommendations	.57
	Recommending others	.58
PART 2	2: GETTING YOUR LINKEDIN PROFILE STARTED	. 61
CHAPTER 4:	Optimizing the "Behind the Scenes" Sections	. 63
	Managing Profile Changes	.63
	Turning off update alerts	
	Removing competitors from your profile	
	Turning On Your Public Profile	
	Creating a Personalized URL	
	Using your name	
	Oh no, my name is taken!	
	Marketing your public profile URL	
	Scanning Your LinkedIn QR Code	
	Improving Your Profile's Strength	
	Expanding Your Network	.//
CHAPTER 5:	Establishing Your Calling Card	. 81
	Using the Name Field Correctly	.82
	Editing your name	
	Adding prefixes to your name	.83
	Keeping your profile confidential	.84

	Filling Out Location and Industry	85
	Choosing your location	85
	Using multiple locations for job search	86
	Choosing your industry	89
	Suggesting a missing industry	
	Including Your Contact Information	
	Adding your email addresses	
	Making your email visible to all	
	Adding a phone number	
	Adding your IM address	
	Adding your work address	
	Adding your Twitter account	
	Adding websites	98
CHADTER 6.	Impressing with the Right Profile Picture	103
CHAITER O.	Why You Need a Profile Picture	
	Determining If You Need a New Profile Picture	
	Using a Photo Already Taken	
	Working with a Photographer	
	Professional photographer rates	
	Delaying the shoot with excuses	
	Taking Your Own Profile Picture	110
	Understanding the importance of light	110
	Finding the right background	
	Framing the shot	
	Finding the right outfit	
	Choosing and Uploading Your Profile Picture	
	Cropping to profile picture dimensions	
	Resizing and saving a high-res image	
	Uploading your photo	
	Using LinkedIn's filters to make your picture better	
	Changing photo visibility settings	118
CHAPTER 7:	Developing a Compelling Headline	123
	Grabbing Your Reader's Attention	
	Adding Flair to Your Headline	
	Saturating Your Headline with Keywords	
	Add your job title	
	Add your specialty	
	Add an extracurricular hobby	
	Add a happy ending	
	Creating a Benefit Statement Headline	
	Adding Your New and Improved Headline to LinkedIn	

CHAPTER 8: Reinforcing Your Brand with a Background Photo	137
Finding the Right Image to Showcase Your Brand	140
CHAPTER 9: Showing You Are Open for Business	
or Job Opportunities	145
Showing You Are Open for Business Turning on the Open Profile setting Enabling the Open for Business feature Choosing your business focus Showing You Are Open to Job Opportunities Enabling the Open to Job Opportunities feature Selecting only recruiters or all LinkedIn members	146 147 149 153 155
PART 3: DETAILING YOUR CAREER TRAJECTORY AND CREATING THE ULTIMATE FIRST IMPRESSION.	159
CHAPTER 10: Getting Your Experiences Ready	161
Referencing Your Resume	
Determining Which Experiences to Keep and Which to Merge	163
Keep your target audience in mind	
How far back do I go?	
Creating a Work History for Recent Graduates Dealing with Employment Gaps	
CHAPTER 11: Creating a Powerful Experience	169
Adding a New Experience	170
Making the start and end dates match your resume	
Using month and year or just year	
Getting the company logo to appear	
Linking to your company's LinkedIn page	
Less Is More — Stop Disqualifying Yourself	
Optimizing your job title with keywords	
Making your job title pop with symbols	181
Describing your roles and responsibilities	
Crafting an impactful achievement	
Summarizing the company with a boilerplate description	
Giving your reader a call to action Editing an Existing Experience	
Reordering Concurrent Experiences	189

Removing an Experience	190
Examples of Great Experiences	
Salesperson looking for a new opportunity	190
Salesperson looking for more prospects	191
Human resources professional using LinkedIn for	
reputation management	
Adding Multimedia to Make Your Profile POP!	
Determining what to highlight with multimedia files	
Resisting the urge to upload your resume	194
CHAPTER 12: Writing a Compelling About Section	197
Editing Your LinkedIn About Section	198
Writing in First Person	
Avoiding Resume Speak	
Revisiting Your LinkedIn Goals and Target Audience	201
Catching Your Reader's Attention	202
Creating Your Professional Manifesto	
Explain your benefits	
Highlight your top achievements	
Keep the About section focused on you	
Create a clear call to action	
Formatting a Sleek LinkedIn About Section	
Examples of Compelling and Engaging About Sections	
Healthcare (job search)	
Real estate professional (sales and prospecting)	
Consultant (sales and prospecting)	
IT professional (reputation management)	
Product management (job search)	
Leadership (reputation management)	
Retail (sales and prospecting)	
Student (job search)	
Student (Job Search)	,
PART 4: ROUNDING OUT YOUR PROFILE	
AND THE FINAL REVEAL	221
CHAPTER 13: There's More to You than Your Jobs	223
Adding Your Education, or Lack Thereof	
Divulging the year you graduated	
Preparing activities and societies	
Adding your education	
Adding multimedia	
Reordering education	
Changing the school displayed in your intro card	

	Listing Licenses and Certifications	.231
	Adding Volunteer Experiences	.233
	Citing Your Accomplishments	
	Showcasing organizations	
	Uncovering your honors and awards	
	The three P's: Projects, publications, and patents	
	Adding courses	
	Adding the languages you speak	
	Creating a Profile in Another Language	.250
CHAPTER 14:	Following Groups, Companies, and Influencers	. 253
	Understanding the Importance of Groups	.254
	Determining the types of groups to join	.255
	Turning off group notifications	.257
	Joining recommended groups	.258
	Searching for groups	
	Deleting groups	
	Turning off group communication email	
	Choosing which groups to highlight on your profile	
	Cultivating Your Following Section	
	Choosing the right companies to follow	
	Following companies	
	Unfollowing companies	
	Showcasing Influencers on Your Profile	
	Deciding which Influencers to showcase	
	Finding specific Influencers	
	Discovering recommended Influencers	
	Removing Influencers	
	Following Schools	.2/1
CHAPTER 15:	Publishing on LinkedIn	. 273
	Showcasing Yourself as a Thought Leader	
	Keeping up with Articles and Activity	
	Understanding the LinkedIn Feed	
	Using hashtags	
	Tagging people	
	Looking at the Difference between a Post and an Article	
	Creating your first post	
	How often should you post?	
	Benchmarking success	
	Reacting and responding to other people's posts	
	Creating your first article	
	What Happens After You Publish?	
	Marketing Vour Blog Post	70/

CHAPTER 16: Unveiling and Marketing Your	
Powerful Profile	. 297
Viewing Your Profile from the Mobile App	
Viewing Your Profile as an Outsider	
Getting Google to Index Your Profile	
Your LinkedIn Profile Checklist	
Benchmarking Your Profile's Success	
Marketing Your Profile	
Alerting your connections of your updated profile	
Adding your profile to other social media sites LinkedIn profile plagiarism	
Getting views to your LinkedIn profile	
To Pay or Not Pay for LinkedIn	
Features of paid accounts	
Unique features of premium accounts	
Choosing the best plan for you	.323
PART 5: THE PART OF TENS	. 325
CHAPTER 17: Ten Profile Do's and Don'ts	. 327
Do Use a Professional Profile Picture	.327
Don't Use LinkedIn's Default Headline	
Do Use Eye-Catching Symbols Sparingly	.328
Do Include Your Contact Information	
Do Add Media Samples	
Don't Stuff Keywords	
Don't Go Back 30 Years	
Do Get Recommendations	
Do Tell a Story	
Do Download four Data	.551
CHAPTER 18: Ten Tips for a Perfect Profile Picture	. 333
Hire a Professional Photographer	.333
Use Lots of Light	
Use a Nondescript Background	
Dress to Impress	
Adjust Yourself	
Keep the Camera Close to Eye Level	
Say No to the Mug Shot	
Crinkle, Smile, and Jut	
Use Photoshop Lightly	
CIUD IUUI IIIIAKE	

CHAPTER 19: Ten Tips to Expand Your Network	339
Import Your Address Book	340
Import a Contact List	342
Let LinkedIn Help You Connect	
Join One Hundred Groups	
Start a LinkedIn Group	
Make Connecting a Process	
Link to Your Profile	
Brand Yourself a LION or Just Connect to Them	
Don't Join Open Networking Lists and Groups	
Use an App	347
CHAPTER 20: Ten Tips to Leverage LinkedIn	349
A-B-C Always Be Connecting	
Connect and Stay in Touch	
Gather Business Intelligence	
Get the News	352
Get Social Proof and Credibility	353
Get Past the Gatekeeper	
Rub Elbows in Groups	
Find Assistance	
Showcase Thought Leadership	
Network in Your Pajamas	356
CHAPTER 21: Ten LinkedIn Profile Resources	357
Get Inspired and Excited	
LinkedIn Headline Generator	
Virtual Phone Numbers	
Google Voice	
Skype	359
Say No to AOL and Hotmail Addresses	
Your own domain	
Acceptable free domains	359
Symbol Variations	
Stop the Typos	
SlideShare	
Photographer Directory	
Background Image Libraries	
Online Image Apps	362

CHAPTER 22:	Ten Ways to Get Noticed by Recruiters on LinkedIn	262
	Make It Easy to Connect the Dots Quickly	
	Exhibit Personality and Show a Cultural Fit	364
	Turn On Open to Job Opportunities	365
	Say Cheese	366
	Provide Your Contact Information	366
	Connect to Them	366
	Comment on Their Posts	367
	Post, Comment, and Hashtag	367
	Keep Your Profile Up to Date and Fresh	367
	Invest in Your Future	368
INDEX		369

Introduction

inkedIn is *the* professional network for business people. Whether you are a job seeker, a corporate executive, a small-business owner, an entrepreneur, or a professional with the desire for more, LinkedIn is the place to build and nurture your network. It's so easy to get caught up in your day-to-day life and job. People flow in and out. But by using LinkedIn to build a network of the people you meet and then keeping in touch with them, you are creating an engine for opportunities.

American businessman and author Robert Kiyosaki has said, "The richest people in the world look for and build networks; everyone else looks for work."

Beyond the network and networking capabilities, LinkedIn is also the place to forge a strong professional brand. As you move through your professional life, people will want to learn more about you. Who are you? What do you do? How do you help others? What do you represent? What is your mission? These are all questions on top of people's minds. The answers to these questions help people decide if they like you and want to spend more time with you.

Remember, people do business with people!

Not everyone has a personal website or websites devoted to them (well, unless you are a celebrity); however, the LinkedIn profile has become the de facto website for everyday professionals. A simple name search for most people returns their LinkedIn profile on the first page of search results. How does your LinkedIn profile portray you? Your LinkedIn profile is your online reputation, digital introduction, and first impression. The good news is that you have complete control over your profile and can shape how your reader perceives you.

Most people simply copy and paste their resume into their profile because it's easy, but a profile consisting of a copied-and-pasted resume impresses no one. Consider the recruiter who has your resume in his hot hands and wants to learn more about you, so he looks you up on LinkedIn, only to find the exact same information that is in your resume. He would be disappointed, to say the least. To have a strong and optimized LinkedIn profile, you need to move beyond just your resume that details your past and aligns you to a job. An optimized LinkedIn profile tells your professional story, is geared strategically toward your goals, and contains what your target audience needs to know about you.

When you are done with this book, your LinkedIn profile is going to be a true compendium of who you are and what you stand for. It's going to authentically tell your professional story, and people will see you as someone who inspires confidence and ability.

About This Book

This book is a how-to manual that shows you the steps to craft a strategic and compelling LinkedIn profile that captures your unique brand and professional story. I show you how to take your profile from nothing more than a simple outline to a robust, full-featured profile of you as a professional that commands attention and evokes action.

Although you can pick up this book at any point, I highly suggest, at the very least, reading Chapter 1 and then Part 2. In Chapter 1, I discuss the importance of determining your LinkedIn goal and target audience. If you don't identify your goal, your profile cannot be written strategically and it will not perform adequately. Likewise, you need to understand your target audience and write to what they need to know about you.

Part 2 is all about the intro card of your LinkedIn profile. This is the very first part people see when they open your LinkedIn profile and you want to make sure you capture their attention immediately, or else they'll surf off to another profile.

Regardless of your LinkedIn goal, you will benefit from the information in this book. Although LinkedIn isn't rocket science, it isn't the most intuitive social network either. Plus, writing about yourself is hard! In this book, I break everything down to its core to make it easy for you to use LinkedIn and create an impressive profile that helps you achieve your professional goals.

Foolish Assumptions

Having worked with thousands of professionals, executives, entrepreneurs, and companies from all over the world, I am going to assume that like them you are optimizing your profile for:

>> Professional branding/reputation management. You know that people are looking at your profile and you want to showcase yourself in a professional and impressive manner. You recognize that people draw conclusions based

- upon what they read, and you want to ensure they see you as a thought leader and someone who deserves to be noticed and respected.
- >> Sales and prospecting. You want to use your LinkedIn profile to help you prospect better and sell more. You know that prospects and clients are looking at your profile, and you want them to see you as a solution provider who can help them achieve their goals. You also know that people may be looking for a service or product that you sell and you want to appear in search results.
- Job search. You are either currently working or displaced, but you are ready to spread your wings and find the next great opportunity that makes you want to get out of bed in the morning and go to work. Recruiters, hiring managers, and human resources professionals are using LinkedIn to find candidates. You want to make sure that your profile stands out in those searches, and that when they click on your profile, what they read is compelling and makes them want to reach out to request your resume. Alternately, you have likely submitted your resume to various job postings and you know that recruiters, hiring managers, and human resources professionals may look at your LinkedIn profile to learn more. You want to make sure your profile is an impressive introduction that compels them to call you for an interview.

How This Book Is Organized

This book is divided into five parts:

Part 1: The Strategy Before the Siege

Most people just jump into writing their LinkedIn profiles, but not you! In this first part, I show you how to immediately stand out by determining your LinkedIn goals, target audience, and keywords.

Part 2: Getting Your LinkedIn Profile Started

In this part, I show you how develop a compelling intro card section by choosing a professional profile picture, creating a compelling headline, and uploading an on-brand background image. I also show you how to create a personalized link to your profile that makes marketing a cinch.

Part 3: Detailing Your Career Trajectory and Creating the Ultimate First Impression

In Part 3, I walk you through filling out the two LinkedIn profile sections the majority of people find the most challenging: Experience and About. You'll learn how to craft impressive experiences that focus on achievements over pure job description. You also learn how to craft an About section that acts as a professional manifesto that engages and impresses your target audience.

Part 4: Rounding Out Your Profile and Adding Finishing Touches

Part 4 is all about the extra flourishes you can add to your profile, such as with sample projects, publications, patents, organizations, and more. I show you how to spice up your profile and professional brand by getting active on LinkedIn and joining the LinkedIn conversation. When you are done with Chapter 15, you will know more than most Influencers do about LinkedIn publishing!

Part 5: The Part of Tens

The Part of Tens is the traditional end of a *For Dummies* book and contains lists of ten items that will help you leverage your profile and LinkedIn even better. This part is packed with links to external websites that provide the tools you can use to create a powerful profile.

The last three Part of Tens chapters are pure powerhouses of information. If you want a quick and dirty education on LinkedIn, don't skip these. By reading these chapters, I promise you, you'll have more knowledge of LinkedIn than most of those social media "gurus" who have set up shop.

Icons Used in This Book

I use a number of icons in this book to draw your attention to pieces of useful information.



This whole book can be considered a series of tips! When I share information that I find especially useful for optimizing your profile, I indicate it with a Tip icon.

...



This icon is used to flag information that may be useful to remember when you think about and work on your profile.



Whenever something may cause unnecessary work or a headache down the road, I alert you with a Warning icon.

WARNING



A Technical Stuff icon contains detailed or background information that is not necessary to know to optimize your profile, but is otherwise interesting.

Beyond the Book

In addition to what you're reading now, this book also comes with a free access-anywhere Cheat Sheet that gives you even more pointers on how to optimize your LinkedIn profile. My favorite cheat sheet details how to take your LinkedIn profile photo yourself! To get this Cheat Sheet, simply go to www.dummies.com and search for LinkedIn Profile Optimization For Dummies Cheat Sheet in the Search box.

You can also visit my website for additional free resources like my LinkedIn Headline Generator, LinkedIn Text Formatter, Background Photo library, and more. Click the Free Resources tab at www.linkedin-makeover.com.

An optimized LinkedIn profile is more than just your online reputation. A powerfully written LinkedIn profile has the ability to change your life. After optimizing their profiles, I've seen people find amazing jobs and opportunities. They connect with more people and experience the full gamut of what LinkedIn and a successful career has to offer.

I wish you the very best of luck — now go get optimizing!

The Strategy Before the Siege

IN THIS PART . . .

Understand your LinkedIn goals and target audience to give your profile purpose.

Learn how to use the proper tone in your profile to draw people in, not push them away.

Optimize your LinkedIn search results by discovering your keywords and infusing them throughout your profile.

Learn how to use LinkedIn as a search tool and how to ensure your search result listing catches a reader's eye.

Add skills to showcase your strengths to potential employers or clients.

See why soliciting endorsements and endorsing others boosts your credibility.

- » Deciding your LinkedIn goal
- » Understanding your target audience
- » Using the proper tone

Chapter **1**

Determining Your LinkedIn Strategy

hen you register for a LinkedIn account, the first thing you encounter is the LinkedIn profile. Most people jump in and immediately fill out the fields of the profile, not giving much thought as to why they are on LinkedIn or who will eventually be reading their profile.

Profiles created without a goal or a target audience in mind lack purpose. These profiles don't catch readers' eyes and compel them to reach out to the person behind the online persona. You see these profiles on LinkedIn every day. Scanning the profile, nothing grabs you or makes you want to learn more about that person.

To experience success on LinkedIn, you must approach your LinkedIn profile strategically. In this chapter, I show you how to determine your LinkedIn strategy by looking at the three most typical goals people are trying to accomplish on LinkedIn. Once you've determined your goal, I show you how to figure out your target audience and discuss the importance of creating a compelling profile tone.

Determining Your LinkedIn Goal

To create a profile that has purpose, you must ask yourself, "What am I trying to accomplish on LinkedIn?" Many people get a LinkedIn account because they want to find a new job. Other people are interested in reputation management and branding. Still other people are on LinkedIn because they are in sales and want to prospect and increase sales through social selling.

To help you determine what you want your profile to accomplish, review the following three most common types of LinkedIn profiles.

Job search

LinkedIn plays a huge role in the job search process. Recruiters, hiring managers, and human resources professionals search LinkedIn looking for potential candidates. They may perform broad-based keyword searches looking for a candidate who matches the skill sets the position requires, or they may already have certain candidates in mind. When they have a person already in mind for a position, a name search is performed on LinkedIn with the goal of learning more about that person than what is stated on his or her resume.

LinkedIn is also a job board. The LinkedIn Jobs section (www.linkedin.com/jobs) is where thousands of jobs from all over the world are posted. These job postings are promoted throughout LinkedIn as well. When you find a job posting that interests you, you can apply for the position by submitting your resume and LinkedIn profile.



Even if you aren't utilizing LinkedIn's job postings or hoping to collide with a recruiter, potential employers are still looking you up on LinkedIn and reviewing your LinkedIn profile. Think about it: If you are about to hire someone, and available to you is a database in which to look this person up and see a picture of the candidate, a listing of people he or she knows, and recommendations of his or her work ethic, of course you would use it!

Potential employers are looking at your profile. The good news is you have control over how you represent yourself and how they perceive you. A job search profile complements and echoes your resume without being a direct one-to-one copy. The profile is written to the job description of that next position you are targeting and showcases you as the perfect candidate for that role. See Figure 1-1 for an example.

To find out more about how to create a powerful job search profile, see Chapter 11.

About

The healthcare industry is undergoing unprecedented disruption. With a combination of novel treatments and increasingly digitized business processes, the options to improve the health and the health services of the global community are growing at a swift pace.

As an Account Manager specializing in healthcare services, I help clients achieve their business and IT initiatives by providing innovative cost-effective solutions that are at once practical and efficient. Working closely with healthcare providers, I deliver targeted needs for varying levels and functions of organizations.

I am currently seeking new opportunities in similar roles in the healthcare services industry.

I have a proven track record in achieving —and exceeding — sales goals. During my tenure at ABC Healthcare, the scope of my portfolio included diverse clients across hospitals and healthcare systems where I specialized in healthcare IT services.

I'm proactive in project management and work diligently to ensure excellence in customer service, tackling issues headon when they arrive. An Account Manager is essentially about customers, regardless of what they sell or manage, and I'm dedicated to quality in everything I do from communications to meeting deadlines. This is the driving force of sustainable business practices and company growth.

Another essential element of a successful business is a healthy company culture. I place an emphasis on collaboration, trust, and respect, and am proud to be known as a professional that honors and supports diversity and inclusion in the workplace.

I strive each day to make a positive impact in a field that I love and look forward to new opportunities to contribute my expertise and help companies thrive. Connect with me on LinkedIn or contact me here:

Email: Joedoe@gmail.com Phone: 215-555-1234

FIGURE 1-1: A job search profile.

Reputation management and branding

It's a Google world. At one time, if you needed to find out information, you headed to the library to search the encyclopedias and other reference materials. Now, all you need to do is pull up a web browser and perform an Internet search to get more information than you could ever read or use.

This easy access to information has some side effects. People are doing more research than ever before and they are researching you! Going to the doctor? Most people search the Internet for the doctor's name to see the results that pop up in a search engine. Executives who find their names appearing in press releases or in magazine articles may find that views to their LinkedIn profiles skyrocket by readers wanting to know more about them.

Job candidates' names are entered into search engines all the time by hiring managers looking to discover more than what is provided in the resume. Similarly, hiring managers' names are searched by job candidates wanting to learn more about their potential new employer.

LinkedIn profiles rank high in search results. Not only is it usually the top result when a person searches for your name, but also it's sometimes the only result, as most people don't have a personal website. You create your LinkedIn profile. You choose what people learn about you. You have total control over how people perceive you. A reputation management profile is one that showcases your successes,

honors, awards, and accomplishments, and leads people to see you as a credible, impressive professional.

Sales and prospecting

LinkedIn is more than just a job search tool. LinkedIn is a compendium of professional profiles with industry and contact information, which makes it a terrific prospecting tool for sales professionals. However, it's not just for sales people looking for prospects. People use LinkedIn to search for service providers and consultants who can help them.

Most people prefer to do business with someone they know or someone with whom they share a connection. When searching LinkedIn for a service provider, you see how you are connected to that service provider through the degrees of connection. This ability to see shared connections provides a level of trust and comfort.

A sales and prospecting profile shines the spotlight on not just the salesperson, but also on that person's products, services, and company he or she represents. Most important, the sales and prospecting profile focuses on prospective clients and their needs, and solidifies the salesperson as someone clients can feel confident in working with. See Figure 1–2 for an example.

About

Trustworthy. Knowledgeable. Reliable. These qualities are the foundation of my success in the Real Estate industry. From first contact to closing, I am a well-rounded Real Estate professional that puts the needs of my clients first to give them the confidence they need for a positive efficient process.

My name is Andy Gates and I am a licensed Realtor in Fort Worth, TX with Widget Real Estate Partners. I help clients with a wide range of properties from Single Family Homes to Commercial Real Estate. With ten years of experience in the Real Estate industry, I understand what it takes to find the right property at the right price and am with potential homeowners and investors every step of the way.

A key component of my success is an emphasis on top quality service. It's about streamlined processes, transparency and accessibility in communications, and a dedication to listening to client priorities and concerns. This serves as the foundation for successful Real Estate experiences in both residential and commercial transactions.

Proficiencies include Residential Real Estate, Commercial Real Estate, Investment Properties, REO, Foreclosures, Short Sales, Listing, Marketing, Social Media, First Time Home Buyers, and Closing Deals.

Industry Credentials:

- * National Association of Realtors
- * National Multifamily Housing Council
- * Institute of Real Estate Management

As an enthusiastic leader and experienced Real Estate professional, I keep an ever-present eye on market trends and utilize the latest technology to discover the best options for client needs. Leveraging my market knowledge and datdriven strategies, I drive success for commercial real estate investors and families across the greater Philadelphia area.

Let's start a conversation about your Real Estate needs.

Email: @gmail.com Phone: 215-555-1234

A sales and prospecting profile.

Figuring Out Your Target Audience

Knowing your goal is only half the battle. Now it's time to figure out your target audience. One of the most common mistakes people make with their LinkedIn profiles is using it to tell the story they want to tell. Instead, you need to use your profile to tell the story your audience *wants to read*. Write for your target audience first.

When you are looking for a job, your target audience is typically recruiters, hiring managers, and human resources professionals. In almost every case, they are armed with a job description. Recruiters want to know that you have the skill sets and experience required to fulfill the job. They also want to know that you are professional, respectful, and capable of doing the job. You want to make it clear in your profile that you are the perfect person for your desired position. After reading your profile, the recruiter should feel confident in your skills and abilities.

When you are on LinkedIn for sales and prospecting, your target audience is your client and prospective client. They are less interested in hearing about your sales expertise and more interested in knowing that you understand their industry and their needs, and can provide solutions to their issues. As you consider your target audience, think in terms of the solutions you offer them and provide them the information they need to feel confident with you as a potential partner.

The sales world has changed in the age of Google and social media. Buyers now educate themselves, researching products and services online. They even research the salesperson, wanting to make sure they are reaching out to someone they can feel comfortable working with. Knowing that you are under a magnifying glass, make sure you provide your target audience with the information they need to feel confident in you and your products or services.

When the goal of your LinkedIn profile is reputation management and branding, your target audience may not be as clear cut as it is with a job search or sale and prospecting. To figure out your audience, you need to determine the type of person you want to cater your profile toward. Is it the executive team and colleagues at your company? Audience members who watched you give a presentation? Readers of articles you wrote? Private equity investors? Once you pinpoint the type of person who you want to target, consider what that person needs to know to take that next step forward.

Do you want your target audience to connect with you on LinkedIn? Perhaps you want them to visit your website and download a white paper. You may want your target audience to email you to request your resume. Your target audience could pick up the phone and call you. Figure out what that next step is so you can build it into your profile as a clear call to action.



Strategically written profiles do not state what you want to say as much as what your target audience needs to know.

Creating a Compelling Tone

LinkedIn is a social network, and writing an impersonal profile filled with business jargon doesn't mesh. Social networks are all about you interacting with your network. And because your network will check out your profile, it's imperative that what they read is from your pen. You don't want to push people away by creating distance between you and your reader.

A powerful LinkedIn profile is written in first person narrative form ("I"). Draw readers in by writing about yourself in the first person. Writing in a conversational, natural tone is a great way to connect with your audience and start forging an easy rapport.

As important as it is to write in first person, you also must be careful not to overuse "I." There is nothing worse than a profile where every sentence starts with I. In my profile, I sometimes use the second person narrative form ("You") because it brings your reader in even closer by speaking directly to them, and it eases the potential overuse of "I."



The best way to ensure your profile is compellingly written is to read it aloud. Does it sound stilted? Does it sound like it's something you would never say to an acquaintance live in person? If so, the writing is forced and not conversational in tone.

Here is an example of stilted, hard-to-read resume speak:

Creating a clear strategy for leveraging resources to produce the maximum number of insights possible. Integrating contextual analytics to business processes. Centralizing deep analysis expertise for use across the organizational axis but mandating each individual department and line of business takes responsibility for their own reporting needs.



You want to write your profile as if you are talking directly to your reader. Your words should sound professional yet natural. A profile written in corporate jargon or resume speak is a turn off. Demonstrate your human side and warmth by writing in a natural, conversational tone.

When you see profiles written in the third person, typically the reason is that they simply copied and pasted their biography or resume into the LinkedIn profile.